



Baltic Marine Environment Protection Commission

Third meeting of Joint HELCOM/ Baltic Earth Expert Network on
Climate Change

EN CLIME 3-2019

Stockholm, Sweden, 19 August 2019

Document title	Draft key messages prepared by the EN CLIME Sea level and wind extremes Team
Code	3-4
Category	DEC
Agenda Item	Agenda Item 3 – Key messages for the primary parameters
Submission date	13.8.2019
Submitted by	Secretariat
Reference	

Background

The following document contains the draft key messages prepared by the Sea level and wind extremes Team under the joint HELCOM/Baltic Earth Expert Network on Climate Change (EN CLIME).

The Sea level and wind extremes Team experts are as follows:

Christian Dieterich (confirmed team lead)

Andreas Lehmann
Anna Rutgersson
Birgit Hünicke
Eduardo Zorita
Erik Kjellström
Jukka Käyhkö
Markus Meier
Peter Löwe
Ralf Weisse
Jan-Hinrich Reißmann
Jürgen Holfort
Wenyan Zhang
Janika Laht

Key messages for the following parameters are included in this document (available experts in the team presented on the right). Grey parameters are parameters for which there is as of yet no key messages:

Parameters	Experts
Sea level and sea level extremes, e.g. storm surges	Andreas Lehmann; Birgit Hünicke; Christian Dieterich ; Eduardo Zorita; Janika Laht; Jürgen Holfort; Marcin Kawka; Markus Meier; Peter Löwe; Ralf Weisse
Wind and wind extremes (storms)	Andreas Lehmann; Anna Rutgersson; Birgit Hünicke; Eduardo Zorita; Erik Kjellström; Jan-Hinrich Reißmann; Janika Laht; Markus Meier; Peter Löwe; Ralf Weisse
Waves and extreme events	Andreas Lehmann; Anna Rutgersson; Markus Meier; Peter Löwe; Ralf Weisse
Sediment transportation	Janika Laht; Jukka Käyhkö; Markus Meier; Wenyan Zhang

Guidance for preparing key messages and the fact sheet:

The following guidance has been compiled from discussions and outcomes of previous EN CLIME and Team meetings and from the background documents, e.g. Terms of Reference.

The fact sheet should present a consensus view by the regions climate experts on the climate change driven changes in the outlined parameters, as well as related issues identified as of relevance to the policy process. The intention is for the fact sheet to be a science driven exercise, relying exclusively on, and synthesizing, already existing detailed, peer reviewed information from leading marine and climate scientists. The information is to be condensed to key messages, including information on trends where possible. In the final fact sheet the information is to be present visually, in an accessible and stable way across years. To make the information as accessible as possible the parameters can at later stage of the process be combined under wider topics in order to make the fact sheet more usable for policy makers. Information to support the statements in the factsheet will be available as separate publications (BACC II, BACC III, BEAR reports etc.), clearly referenced and the fact sheet itself fully-citable. While already existing BACC reports should be used as supporting material for the EN CLIME work, that subsequent results coming out of BACC III can be used to amend the key messages where needed prior to publication.

The fact sheet will strive to be a concise and easily accessible resource from science to regulators and policymakers and will contain information, using agreed language, on what has happened and what can be expected to happen in the future. As discussed in EN CLIME 2-2019 wherever possible the information should be presented in approximate ranges (near term, medium term and long term) and that changes in extremes as well as in means should be taken into account for each of the primary parameters.

While the fact sheet should be made as approachable as possible, the overall complexity of the issue also needs to be communicated. In this respect the EN CLIME has highlighted the interlinkages between different parameters and supported the possibility to include some sort of info-graphic to visualize the interlinkages.

The title 'Description' should be included to the fact sheet in a very concise manner, describing the underlying factors, and linkages to other parameters.

EN CLIME has in previous meeting discussed the importance of describing the uncertainty of predictions and noted that uncertainty varies depending on the temporal ranges used and between parameters, which needs to be taken into account in the description. Hence different uncertainties can be given for different parameters and time intervals.

Action requested

The Meeting is invited to review and revise the draft key messages and agree on them, keeping in mind that the intention is to streamline the presentation of all messages to the extent possible.



Baltic Marine Environment Protection Commission

Third meeting of Joint HELCOM/ Baltic Earth Expert Network on
Climate Change

EN CLIME 3-2019

Stockholm, Sweden, 19 August 2019

Sea level and sea level extremes, e.g. storm surges

Give a brief description of the parameter sea level

Sea level is traditionally measured with a scale on the harbor wall. The earliest scales from the 18th century were marks on large, prominent boulders along the shoreline of the Baltic Sea (Ekman, 2009). Nowadays many automated stations all along the Baltic coast deliver this information with time intervals between 1 minute and 6 hours. Sea level changes when water is added to the global ocean, when it expands by warming or when the land is rising to which the scale is attached. These are the three most important contributions to long-term changes in sea level in the Baltic Sea (BACC I, Hünicke et al., 2015).

Due to an excess of precipitation and river runoff over evaporation the sea level in the Baltic is higher than in the North Sea and water flows out of the Baltic through the Danish straits into the North Sea. The amount of water flowing through this narrow strait depends to a large extent on the wind regime in the larger scale Baltic-North Sea transition zone. It is also over this way, that the global sea level rise has repercussions on the Baltic sea level. The fill factor is highly correlated with the local sea level at Landsort, showing maximal amplitude of about 1m. The longer term seasonal cycle shows a minimum in May and a maximum in December.

Changes in oceanic and atmospheric circulation cause variations of sea levels in the Baltic Sea on seasonal to decadal time scales (Chen and Omstedt, 2005). Winter sea level in the Baltic Sea is usually higher than summer sea level (Samuelsson and Stigebrandt, 1996). And mild winters with stronger than average winds show higher sea levels than severe winters (Andersson, 2002, Karabil et al., 2018). During the cold seasons from fall to spring the risk is higher for storms to produce storm surges along the coasts of the Baltic Sea (Lehmann et al., 2011). Storm surges are water masses pushed against the coasts by the wind of atmospheric low pressure systems. The lower atmospheric pressure in a storm can add to the amplitude of the storm surge. Storms also excite oscillations in the Baltic Sea that are highest at the ends of the different basins and lowest in the Baltic Proper (Weisse and Weidemann, 2017). The most effective wind for a storm surge in the western Baltic is a strong northeasterly wind over the southern Baltic. For the eastern Gulf of Finland it is more a strong westerly wind over the Central Baltic and the Gulf of Finland. So extreme sea levels have to be discriminated regionally.

Waves that are generated during storms can add to extreme sea levels measured along the coast (Elsalu et al., 2014). The amplitude of tides is relatively small in the Baltic Sea and adds to extreme sea levels only in the Kattegat and Skagerrak.

Show links to other parameters.

The mean sea level of the global ocean is closely related to the volume of the ocean. The volume is changing due to geologic activity and to the addition of water that was previously frozen on land like the Antarctic and Greenland ice sheets and mountain glaciers. Melting rates of glaciers are sensitive to changes in air temperature, snow cover and the resulting brightness. Ice sheets in polar regions are affected additionally by contact with ocean water melting the ice from below, which can cause instabilities in the integrity and the flow of the ice sheets. Ocean temperatures affect the mean sea level because warmer water is lighter and takes up more volume than colder water. The continuous redistribution of heat from the tropics to the polar regions establishes the ocean circulation systems that form a sea surface relief along which the ocean currents are flowing. This sea surface relief modulates the global mean sea level by

Commented [A1]: I tried to combine the two available text suggestions for sea level. Now the combined text is too long but we can shorten later. First we should agree on the content.

Commented [A2]: Add Wüßner and Krauss?

up to half a meter (e.g. Yin et al., 2009). The mean sea level in the Baltic Sea depends on the strength of the ocean circulation in the Atlantic (Yin et al., 2009, 2010, Yin, 2012, Balmaseda et al., 2013b). Temperature and freshwater distribution in the ocean leave their imprint on height of the sea surface and cause it to vary on decadal time scales (Balmaseda et al., 2013a). Atmospheric winds are another important driver of sea level variability on time scales from decades down to a couple of hours during a storm surge.

What is happening?

Mean changes

Global mean sea level rise is measured at 1.5 mm/year during the 20th century. It is estimated at a rate of 2.8 mm/year during the period since satellites are measuring (1993 to 2010). The rate of global mean sea level rise is increasing [high confidence]. During the second half of the past century thermal expansion of sea water and the addition of melt water from the Antarctic and Greenland ice sheets and from glaciers have contributed about equally to the process [high confidence] (Church et al., 2013). Sea level rise (relative to the ellipsoid) in the Baltic Sea in the past 50 years is estimated between 1 and 3 mm/year (Milne et al., 2001, Hill et al., 2010, Richter et al., 2011, BACC I, BACC II).

Commented [A3]: Uncertainty range from the literature. What are the latest numbers? Is there an acceleration since 1980?

For the last decades and centuries the land uplift is the most important factor contributing to sea level change in the Baltic. The highest rates of land uplift of 10 mm/year are found at Høga Kusten. The land uplift diminishes away from this center and is very small and even reaching negative numbers along the German and Polish coasts of the Baltic Sea. There the sea level rise is about plus 1-2mm/year; similar to the global sea level rise. Up in the northern Baltic the measured local sea level rise is more around minus 7-8mm/year. For the period 1886-2017, Swedish Baltic Sea records showed an eustatic increase (without land uplift) of about 24 cm corresponding to 1.8 mm/year (Source: SMHI). **Extremes**

Commented [A4]: Check the number

Return levels with corresponding return periods is a concept to assess the amplitude and the probability of extreme events. A storm surge with a 100-year return period will occur on average once in 100 years. The amplitude of the event depends on the location in the Baltic Sea. Storm surges at the end of the basins furthest away from the Baltic Proper are higher than those in the center of the Baltic Sea [high confidence] (Meier et al., 2004, Wolski et al., 2014, Dieterich et al., 2019). No long-term trend has been found so far that points to an increase of extreme sea levels in the Baltic Sea (EN-CLIME wind, BACC II). There are however studies (e.g. Suursaar and Sooäär, 2007) that confirm extreme sea level e.g. in the Gulf of Finland to be very sensitive to the position of the storm tracks.

Commented [A5]: What does this mean? Will the projected northward shift of the storm track have an impact on extremes? You should add the results by Land and Mikołajewicz (2019).

What is expected to happen in the future?

Mean changes

Since the ice has melted that covered Scandinavia during the last ice age the earth crust is rebounding. The highest rates of land uplift of 10 mm/year are found at Høga Kusten on the Bothnian Bay. The land uplift diminishes away from this center and is very small along the German and Polish coasts of the Baltic Sea. This process is expected to continue for thousands of years [high confidence]. Along most of the Baltic Sea coasts the land uplift causes sea level to fall. On top of this change, global mean sea level rise will continue to raise sea levels in the Baltic Sea at an increasing rate [high confidence] (Church et al., 2013). When the rate of sea level rise becomes larger than the land uplift, sea level will start to rise relative to land. First in the southern Baltic Sea and with accelerating rates of global mean sea level rise the line of rising sea level will move northward. During this century melting ice sheets in Antarctica and Greenland will contribute more to the total than in the past [medium confidence] (Church et al., 2013). The sea level rise due to melting ice is not distributed uniformly around the global ocean. Sea level rise from melting ice sheets in Antarctica is more pronounced in the northern hemisphere because the missing ice mass has a smaller gravitational pull on the surrounding water. As in Scandinavia, the missing ice causes the earth crust to

Commented [A6]: But not with the same rising rate? Replace with hundred years?

rebound which makes the sea level rise slower where the ice is melting [medium confidence]. Based on these processes the mean sea level rise in the Baltic Sea is projected to amount to 80% of the global mean sea level rise (Grinsted, 2015). Recent efforts since the latest IPCC report that focused on the contribution of Antarctic ice sheets to global mean sea level rise have shown that the interaction of warming ocean water, melting the ice sheets from below can lead to instabilities in the ice sheet dynamics. The ice sheets flowing from land into the ocean are in contact with the ocean floor out to the grounding line. From there on outward the ocean is melting the ice from below and the ice sheets become thinner and lighter. If the weight of the ice sheet becomes less than the weight of the ocean water it replaces, it floats up and away. The grounding line retreats inland where the ice sheet is thicker and the ice flow larger and reinforces the ice loss (Mercer, 1978). This and related feedback loops could lead to an extra meter of sea level rise until the end of the century [low confidence] (e.g. Sweet et al., 2017). The most recent estimates (Bamber et al., June 2019) for global mean sea level rise in 2100 relative to 2000, including these potential contributions (including land water storage) are 69 cm and 111 cm for low and high sea level scenarios, respectively. For the high sea level scenario the likely range (5% to 95%) is between 62 cm and 238 cm.

Changes in the Baltic sea levels will also be affected by possible changes in the fill factor but projected changes are very uncertain.

Extremes

How extremes will change is highly uncertain, as they are dependent on the strength, the position and the path of future low pressure systems. And the dependence also varies strongly with the position of the considered point along the Baltic coast.

In the Baltic Sea, return levels show a low to moderate increase for increasing return periods (HazardSupport, 2018)(true everywhere?). The 100-year return level for Stockholm for example is estimated at 102 cm, while the 200-year return level is 107 cm. Both estimates have a large uncertainty of 25 cm and 30 cm, respectively (SMHI report regeringsuppdraget). Even under moderate increase of mean sea level in the Baltic Sea, extreme events that are rare today will be much more common towards the end of the century. In the above example a sea level rise of 20 cm in 2100 will turn the 100-year storm surge in Stockholm into an event that occurs every 10 years on average [medium confidence]. Thus, the main driver of changes in Baltic Sea storm surges is the global mean sea level rise [medium confidence].

Knowledge gaps

There is potential for mean sea level rise in the Baltic Sea that is caused by the freshening of the Baltic Sea. Under a warming climate precipitation patterns over the Baltic Sea drainage basin change (EN-CLIME precipitation) and the river discharge is expected to increase (EN-CLIME discharge). Fresher water in the Baltic Sea will take up more volume and sea levels in the Baltic Sea will rise. There has been no comprehensive study so far to assess the impact of halosteric contributions to the Baltic Sea level. Also the impact of changing land water storage for the Baltic Sea region on Baltic Sea levels needs to be assessed (Haasnoot et al., 2015 for the Netherlands).

On the global scale it has been shown (Bingham and Hughes, 2012) that sea level will raise proportionally more on the shallow shelf regions around the continents than in the deeper, open ocean. For the Baltic Sea no such study exists that could answer whether mean sea level rise applies to coastal regions in the same way as for the open Baltic Sea.

Commented [A7]: Meier: Numbers for the Baltic Sea? Are there studies for the Baltic Sea that tried to combine all the effects?

Commented [A8R7]: Meier et al. (2004) and many more

Commented [A9]: Is this available literature? Reference? Is land uplift considered?

Storm surges and other hazards can turn into disaster if they occur concurrently. There have been some examples and studies (e.g. Zscheischler et al., 2018) that have shown that the impact of multiple hazards can be much worse than a single extreme event. Not much is known today about the interaction of extreme events with a focus on storm surges.

The coverage in time and space of sea level measurements in the Baltic Sea is among the best in the world. Many records date back to late 19th century. Nevertheless, the observational record tends to underestimate the natural variability that is inherent in storm floods (Lang and Mikolajewicz, 2019) in the Baltic Sea. One example is the Backafloeden 1872. It is not clear which return period should be attributed to this event (Fredriksson, 2016, 2017). With today's observational time series it cannot be categorized. Two conclusions can be drawn here. First, more research is needed to investigate the influence of natural variability on storm surges in the Baltic Sea. Second, long measurement records are of vital importance to assess natural variability in coastal flooding around the Baltic Sea.

Policy relevance:

Relevance is high, both for mean sea level rise and for extreme events.

Sea level rise influences and interacts with wind waves (EN-CLIME waves) and coastal erosion (EN-CLIME sediment).

What can be done about it (possible responses)?

The implementation of the COP 21 Paris agreement 2015 of the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change helps to reduce the risk of large contributions to sea level rise from the West Antarctic ice sheets.

Sea level changes have led to the relocation of harbors in the past (Söderköping) and today (Lulea).

Especially focusing on avoidance, alleviation, adjustment and adaptation.

- Saint Petersburg Flood Prevention Facility Complex
- Stockholm Sluice
- Levees along the German and Polish coasts

What is already being done about it?

Existing agreements/policies:

The EU water directive has led to a Swedish ordinance and a directive (översvämningsdirektivet) by the Swedish Civil Contingencies Agency to chart areas prone to flooding (including coastal flooding) and how to deal with risks of flooding.

The Swedish insurance company Länförsäkringar has decided not to give out housing insurance anymore for new buildings in areas that are at a high risk for flooding (Länförsäkringar, May 2019).

How does it affect measures taken to reduce pressures on the Baltic Sea?

Policy gaps

Sea level rise for coastal cities around the Baltic Sea is more sensitive to the thermosteric expansion of the global ocean compared to coastal cities around the coasts of the Atlantic or Pacific Ocean (Larour et al., 2017). Also, ice sheet melt in Antarctica has a disproportional high impact in the Baltic Sea while ice sheet melt in Greenland has no effect. Sea level research focused on the Baltic Sea may take this into account.

Commented [A10]: I do not understand. Why do the underestimate the natural variability? I would argue that measured records are too short.

Commented [A11]: Why? And why is there a policy gap related to this fact?

Commented [A12]: Missing reference

References:

- Ekman, M.: The Changing Level of the Baltic Sea during 300 Years: A Clue to Understanding the Earth, Summer Institute for Historical Geophysics, Åland Islands, 2009.
- Hünicke, B., Zorita, E., Soomere, T., Madsen, K. S., Johansson, M., and Suursaar, Ü.: Recent Change—Sea Level and Wind Waves, pp. 155–185, Springer International Publishing, Cham, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-319-16006-1_9, 2015.
- Chen, D. and Omstedt, A.: Climate-induced variability of sea level in Stockholm: Influence of air temperature and atmospheric circulation, *Adv Atmos Sci*, 22, 655–664, <https://doi.org/10.1007/BF02918709>, 2005.
- Samuelsson, M. and Stigebrandt, A.: Main characteristics of the long-term sea level variability in the Baltic sea, *Tellus A*, 48, 672–683, <https://doi.org/10.1034/j.1600-0870.1996.t01-4-00006.x>, 1996.
- Andersson, H. C.: Influence of long-term regional and large-scale atmospheric circulation on the Baltic sea level, *Tellus A*, 54, 76–88, 2002.
- Karabil, S., Zorita, E., and Hünicke, B.: Contribution of atmospheric circulation to recent off-shore sea-level variations in the Baltic Sea and the North Sea, *Earth Syst Dynam*, 9, 69–90, <https://doi.org/10.5194/esd-9-69-2018>, 2018.
- Lehmann, A., Klaus, G., and Harlaß, J.: Detailed assessment of climate variability in the Baltic Sea area for the period 1958 to 2009, *Clim Res*, 46, 185–196, <https://doi.org/10.3354/cr00876>, 2011.
- Weisse, R. and Weidemann, H.: Baltic Sea extreme sea levels 1948-2011: Contributions from atmospheric forcing, *Procedia IUTAM*, 25, 65–69, <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.piutam.2017.09.010>, IUTAM Symposium on Storm Surge Modelling and Forecasting, 2017.
- Eelsalu, Soomere, Pindsoo, and Lagemaa] Eelsalu, M., Soomere, T., Pindsoo, K., and Lagemaa, P.: Ensemble approach for projections of return periods of extreme water levels in Estonian waters, *Cont Shelf Res*, 91, 201–210, <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.csr.2014.09.012>, 2014.
- Yin, J., Schlesinger, M. E., and Stouffer, R. J.: Model projections of rapid sea-level rise on the north-east coast of the United States, *Nat Geosci*, 2, 262–266, <https://doi.org/10.1038/NGEO462>, 2009.
- Yin, J., Griffies, S. M., and Stouffer, R. J.: Spatial Variability of Sea Level Rise in Twenty-First Century Projections, *J Climate*, 23, 4585–4607, <https://doi.org/10.1175/2010JCLI3533.1>, 2010.
- Yin, J.: Century to multi-century sea level rise projections from CMIP5 models, *Geophys Res Lett*, 39, <https://doi.org/10.1029/2012GL052947>, 2012.
- Balmaseda, Trenberth, and Kalnay] Balmaseda, M. A., Trenberth, K. E., and Kalnay, E.: Distinctive climate signals in reanalysis of global ocean heat content, *Geophys Res Lett*, 40, 1754–1759, <https://doi.org/10.1002/grl.50382>, 2013b.
- Balmaseda, M. A., Mogensen, K., and Weaver, A. T.: Evaluation of the ECMWF ocean reanalysis system ORAS4, *Q J Roy Meteor Soc*, 139, 1132–1161, <https://doi.org/10.1002/qj.2063>, 2013a.

- Church, J. A., Clark, P. U., Cazenave, A., Gregory, J. M., Jevrejeva, S., Levermann, A., Merrifield, M. A., Milne, G. A., Nerem, R. S., Nunn, P. D., Payne, A. J., Pfeffer, W. T., Stammer, D., and Unnikrishnan, A. S.: Sea Level Change, in: *Climate Change 2013: The Physical Science Basis. Contribution of Working Group I to the Fifth Assessment Report of the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change*, edited by Stocker, T. F., Qin, D., Plattner, G.-K., Tignor, M., Allen, S. K., Boschung, J., Nauels, A., Xia, Y., Bex, V., and Midgley, P. M., chap. 13, pp. 1137–1216, Cambridge University Press, Cambridge, United Kingdom and New York, NY, USA, 2013a.
- Hill, E. M., Davis, J. L., Tamisiea, M. E., and Lidberg, M.: Combination of geodetic observations and models for glacial isostatic adjustment fields in Fennoscandia, *Journal of Geophysical Research: Solid Earth*, 115, <https://doi.org/10.1029/2009JB006967>, 2010.
- Richter, A., Groh, A., and Dietrich, R.: Geodetic observation of sea-level change and crustal deformation in the Baltic Sea region, *Physics and Chemistry of the Earth, Parts A/B/C*, 53-54, 43–53, <https://doi.org/https://doi.org/10.1016/j.pce.2011.04.011>, 2012.
- Meier, H. E. M., Broman, B., and Kjellström, E.: Simulated sea level in past and future climates of the Baltic Sea, *Clim Res*, 27, 59–75, <https://doi.org/10.3354/cr02705904>, 2004.
- Wolski, T., Włódniewski, B., Giza, A., Kowalewska-Kalkowska, H., Boman, H., Grabbi-Kaiv, S., Hammarklint, T., Holfort, J., and Lydeikaitė, v.: Extreme sea levels at selected stations on the Baltic Sea coast, *Oceanologia*, 56, 259–290, <https://doi.org/http://dx.doi.org/10.5697/oc.56-2.259>, 2014.
- Dieterich, C., Gröger, M., Arneborg, L., and Andersson, H. C.: Extreme Sea Levels in the Baltic Sea under Climate Change Scenarios. Part 1: Model Validation and Sensitivity, *Ocean Sci Discuss*, 2019a.
- Suursaar, Ü. and Soõmägi, J.: Decadal variations in mean and extreme sea level values along the Estonian coast of the Baltic Sea, *Tellus A*, 59, 249–260, <https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1600-0870.2006.00220.x>, 2007.
- Grinsted, A.: *Projected Change—Sea Level*, pp. 253–263, Springer International Publishing, Cham, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-319-16006-1_14, 2015.
- Mercer, J. H.: West Antarctic ice sheet and CO₂ greenhouse effect: a threat of disaster, *Nature*, 271, 321–325, 1978.
- Sweet, W. V., Horton, R., Kopp, R. E., LeGrande, A. N., and Romanou, A.: Sea level rise, in: *Climate Science Special Report: Fourth National Climate Assessment, Volume I*, edited by Wuebbles, D. J., Fahey, D. W., Hibbard, K. A., Dokken, D. J., Stewart, B. C., and Maycock, T. K., pp. 333–363, U.S. Global Change Research Program, Washington, DC, USA, <https://doi.org/10.7930/J0VM49F2>, 2017.
- Bamber, J. L., Oppenheimer, M., Kopp, R. E., Aspinall, W. P., and Cooke, R. M.: Ice sheet contributions to future sea-level rise from structured expert judgment, *Proceedings of the National Academy of Sciences*, 116, 11195–11200, <https://doi.org/10.1073/pnas.1817205116>, 2019.
- Södrling, J. and Nerheim, S.: *Statistisk metodik för beräkning av dimensionerande havsvattenstånd*, Report, SMHI, 2016.
- Haasnoot, M., Schellekens, J., Beersma, J. J., Middelkoop, H., and Kwadijk, J. C. J.: Transient scenarios for robust climate change adaptation illustrated for water management in The Netherlands, *Environ. Res.*

Let., 10, 105 008, <https://doi.org/10.1088/1748-9326/10/10/105008>, 2015.

- Bingham, R. J. and Hughes, C. W.: Local diagnostics to estimate density-induced sea level variations over topography and along coastlines, *Journal of Geophysical Research: Oceans*, 117, <https://doi.org/10.1029/2011JC007276>, 2012.

- Lang, A. and Mikolajewicz, U.: The long-term variability of extreme sea levels in the German Bight, *Ocean Sci Discuss*, 2019, 1–34, <https://doi.org/10.5194/os-2019-19>, 2019.

- Fredriksson, C., Tajvidi, N., Hanson, H., and Larson, M.: Statistical Analysis of Extreme Sea Water Levels at the Falsterbo Peninsula, South Sweden, *Vatten, Journal of Water Management and Research*, 72, 129–142, 2016.

- Fredriksson, C., Feldmann Eellend, B., Larson, M., and Martinez, G.: Historiska stormhändelser som underlag vid riskanalys – Studie av översvämningarna 1872 och 1904 längs Skånes syd- och ostkust, *Vatten, Journal of Water Management and Research*, 73, 93–108, 2017.

- Zscheischler, J., Westra, S., van den Hurk, B. J. J. M., Seneviratne, S. I., Ward, P. J., Pitman, A., AghaKouchak, A., Bresch, D. N., Leonard, M., Wahl, T., and Zhang, X.: Future climate risk from compound events, *Nat Clim Change*, 8, 469–477, <https://doi.org/10.1038/s41558-018-0156-3>, 2018.



Baltic Marine Environment Protection Commission

Third meeting of Joint HELCOM/ Baltic Earth Expert Network on Climate Change
 Stockholm, Sweden, 19 August 2019

Sediment transport and erosion

<p>Sediment transport and erosion</p> <p><i>Wenyan Zhang, HZG</i></p>	<p>Give a brief description of the parameter</p> <p>Show links to other parameters.</p> <p>Sediment transport is triggered mainly by currents in marine environment, by waves in the nearshore and by wind in subaerial coastal environment. Its direct consequence is a gradual change of the earth surface landform, leading to erosion or accretion.</p> <p>Short-term and small-scale sediment transport is strongly hinged on a variety of local state variables including wind velocity and</p>	<p>What is expected to happen in the future? Present expected changes quantitatively e.g. through ranges whenever possible.</p> <p>If the relative sea level rise in the southern Baltic Sea follows the mean value of RCP2.6 projection, which is ~0.24 m until 2065, the rate of sea level rise in this region (~1.2 mm/yr for the past few decades) would be accelerated. As a natural consequence coastal erosion would be regionally enhanced to fill the increased underwater accommodation space. The extent of</p>	<p>What is expected to happen in the future? Present expected changes quantitatively e.g. through ranges whenever possible.</p> <p>A critical threshold, which distinguishes a linear and a non-linear (following a quadratic or a higher power law) relationship between foredune height and rate of relative sea level rise, seems to exist in the southern Baltic Sea coast. If a rise by 0.3 m in the relative sea level (RCP8.5) would occur by 2065 in this region, such critical threshold would probably be reached before 2050, causing drastic</p>	<p>What is happening? Provide information on already identified effects</p> <p>What are the direct consequences? Examples of effects can we already see, if available.</p> <p>Due to a combined effect of isotstaic adjustment and eustatic sea level change, the coastline change of the Baltic Sea is characterized by a North-South gradient from an uplift of max. 9 mm/yr in the North to a subsidence of min. -2 mm/yr in the south since the onset of the Holocene. The subsiding southern Baltic Sea coast is characterized by a</p>	<p>What is happening? Provide information on already identified effects</p> <p>What are the direct consequences? Examples of effects can we already see, if available.</p> <p>Many sandy beaches along the Gulf of Finland have recently been severely damaged by frequent storm surges, despite extensive protective measures.</p> <p>Soft cliffs in Latvia are eroded 3–6 m/yr after each storm, with a maximum of up to 20–30 m/yr at local sites.</p> <p>Extreme erosional rate along Lithuania and</p>	<p>We lack a comprehensive understanding of alongshore sediment transport and associated variability along the Baltic coast. In general, an eastward transport dominates along a major part of the southern Baltic coast due to the impact of the prevailing westerly winds. However, the intensity of secondary transport induced by easterly and northerly winds is much less understood. Its combination with storm surges further complicated the understanding because in such circumstance the sandy dunes and cliffs are exposed to highest erosional impact.</p> <p>Another knowledge gap in understanding coastal</p>	<p>Policy relevance:</p> <p>Sediment transport and coastal erosion are relevant for coastal management, construction and protection strategies.</p> <p>What can be done about it (possible responses)? Especially focusing on avoidance, alleviation, adjustment and adaptation.</p> <p>In general two main types of management strategy: 1) coastal protection by soft or hard measures; and 2) adaptation to coastal change, accepts that in some</p>
--	---	--	--	--	---	--	---

Commented [A13]: I do not understand the logic here. Do you mean that even in case of an optimistic scenario coastal erosion has to be enhanced? Why 2065? A present acceleration of 0.07 mm/yr² and a sea level rise of 1.5 mm/yr would result for the period 2005-2100 in a 46 cm higher sea level at the end of the century, i.e. RCP 4.5 or?

<p>direction, water level, waves as well as the antecedent state of the system, while long-term and large-scale sediment transport and coastal erosion are primarily controlled by sediment supply modulated by large-scale processes, notably mean sea level, storms, the regional wind and wave pattern, and engineering structures.</p>	<p>enhancement in erosion depends on not only the sea level but also storms.</p> <p>Due to the impact of the prevailing westerly winds, the dominant sediment transport will remain eastwards along a major part of the southern Baltic coast, but with a high variability along some local coast sections which have small incidence angle of incoming wind-waves.</p> <p>Development of the foredunes will continue in prograding coasts.</p>	<p>change on the foredune characteristics and much stronger erosion on cliffs and old coastal dunes.</p>	<p>series of barrier islands and sandy dunes connected with soft moraine cliffs. The composition of soft, mobile sediments makes the southern Baltic Sea coast extremely vulnerable to wind-wave induced transport and erosion. Most coastline erosion along the southern Baltic Sea is caused either by storms or human-induced depletion of sediment supply (e.g. side effect of engineering structures).</p> <p>Mean erosional rate along Latvia and Lithuania for the sandy coasts and soft cliffs are 1–2 m/yr and 0.5-0.6 m/yr in the latter half of the twentieth century. Since 1980s erosional rates of certain sections have been enhanced to 1.5–4 m/yr;</p>	<p>Russia(Kaliningrad) for cliff are 10 m/yr.</p> <p>Poland: recent erosion after each storm surge reaches 3–6 m/yr;</p> <p>Germany: erosion by storms has reached 3 m/yr at some local coastal sections</p> <p>Maximum erosion rates along the dune coasts in the Kattegat are ~2 m/yr.</p>	<p>erosion in response to future climate change is on the impact of water levels and the submergence of the beach.</p> <p>Anthropogenic influence imposes one of the largest uncertainty in sediment transport and coastal erosion. An engineering structure (e.g. pier, seawall) influences coastline change at a much larger spatial scale than the dimension of the structure itself.</p>	<p>places the coast would be left in its natural state.</p> <p>What is already being done about it?</p> <p>Existing agreements/policies:</p> <p>Soft protection: 1) Beach nourishment; 2) Artificial planting of pioneer grass species in front of the foredune.</p> <p>Hard protection: 1) Groynes; 2) Dykes; 3) Seawall and/or revetments; 4) Artificial headlands; 5) Breakwaters</p> <p>How does it affect measures taken to reduce pressures on the Baltic Sea?</p> <p>Policy gaps Administrative efforts for coastal protection differ among Baltic Sea countries, even between</p>
--	---	--	---	--	--	---

Commented [A15]: Very interesting but very complicated to understand.

Commented [A14]: Are there no scenarios for coastal erosion available?

				<p>Mean erosional rate along Lithuania and Russia(Kaliningrad) for the sandy coast and cliff are 0.5-0.8 m/yr and 1-1.5 m/yr, respectively, and rates have increased over the past decade.</p> <p>The Polish coast is mainly formed of soft sandy sediments , with an average rate of retreat of 0.5–1.5 m year⁻¹. Coastal towns which experienced erosion of 0.3–0.7 m/yr now have a nourished beach.</p> <p>Mean erosion rate along the German sandy coast is 0.4 m/yr.</p> <p>In southern Sweden, the soft moraine cliffs have retreated 1–1.5 m year⁻¹ over the past 150 years.</p> <p>Erosion rates along the dune coasts in the Kattegat are within 2 m year⁻¹.</p>			<p>neighbouring states or nations. Management actions are complicated by morphodynamic changes caused by artificial coastal protection in some places and its consequent disruption in downstream area.</p>
--	--	--	--	--	--	--	---

Commented [A16]: Very interesting. However can this information be summarized?

				<p>Coastal erosion has the following direct consequences:</p> <ol style="list-style-type: none"> 1. loss of coastal lands; 2. loss of coastal resilience; 3. loss of valuable natural habitats; 4. loss of economic value and private property; 5. increasing cost to society in terms of coastal protection. 			
--	--	--	--	--	--	--	--

References for sediment transport and erosion:

BACC II Author Team (2015). Second assessment of climate change for the Baltic Sea Basin. Regional Climate Studies. Cham: Springer. <https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-319-16006-1>.

Dudzinska-Nowak, P. (2017): Morphodynamic processes of the Swina Gate coasta zone development (Southern Baltic Sea). In: Harff J, Furmanczyk K, von Storch H (eds) Coastline changes of the Baltic Sea from south to east – past and future projection. Coastal research library, vol 19. Springer, Cham, Switzerland.

Harff, J., Lemke, W., Lampe, R., Lüth, F., Lübke, H., Meyer, M., Tauber, F., Schmoelcke, U. (2007): The Baltic Sea coast – a model of interrelations among geosphere, climate, and anthroposphere. In: Harff J, Hay WW, Tetzlaff DM (eds) Coastline changes: interrelation of climate and geological processes. Geol Soc Am Spec Paper 426:133–142

Harff, J., J. Deng, J. Durzinska-Nowak, P. Fröhle, A. Groh, B. Hünicke, T. Soomere, and Zhang, W. (2017): Chapter 2: What determines the change of coastlines in the Baltic Sea? In: Harff J, Furmanczyk K, von Storch H (eds) Coastline changes of the Baltic Sea from south to east – past and future projection. Coastal research library, vol 19. Springer, Cham, Switzerland. DOI:10.1007/978-3-319-49894-2

Łabuz, T. A. (2015): Environmental impacts – coastal erosion and coastline changes. Chapter 20. In: BACC II Team (eds.), Second assessment of climate change for the Baltic Sea basin. Springer (515p.): 381–396.

Musielak, S., Furmanczyk, K., Bugajny, N. (2017): Factors and processes forming the Polish southern Baltic Sea coast on various temporal and spatial scales. In: Harff J, Furmanczyk K, von Storch H (eds) Coastline changes of the Baltic Sea from south to east – past and future projection. Coastal research library, vol 19. Springer, Cham, pp 69–86.

Tonisson, H., Orviku, K., Lapinskis, J., Gulbinskas, S., Zaromskis, R. (2013): The Baltic states: Estonia, Latvia and Lithuania. In: Pranzini E, Williams A (eds) Coastal erosion and protection in Europe. Routledge, London/New York, pp 47–80

Zhang, W., Harff, J and Schneider, R., (2011). Analysis of 50-year wind data of the southern Baltic Sea for modelling coastal morphological evolution - a case study from the Darss-Zingst Peninsula. *Oceanologia*, 53 (1-TI), 489-518. doi:10.5697/oc.53-1-TI.489

Zhang, W., Schneider, R., Harff, J., Hünicke, B., Froehle, P. (2017): Modeling of medium-term (decadal) coastal foredune morphodynamics – historical hindcast and future scenarios of the Swina Gate barrier coast (southern Baltic Sea). In: Harff J, Furmanczyk K, von Storch H (eds) Coastline changes of the Baltic Sea from south to east – past and future projection. Coastal research library, vol 19. Springer, Cham